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Ranking as one of Japan’s leading chemical companies, Showa Denko K.K.

operates in the five major sectors of petrochemicals, chemicals, electronics,

inorganic materials, and aluminum.

Showa Denko has many consolidated subsidiaries active in a wide range of

related operations, including Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd., which manufactures

polyolefin plastics.

As for the ongoing medium-term consolidated business plan, which extends

from 2000 through 2005, we are carrying out an action plan during the initial

three-year period.  Under this action plan, named the “Cheetah Project,” we

are focusing on such strategic, high-growth areas as electronics, high-value-

added fabricated aluminum products, and specialty chemicals in the allocation

of our resources while selling or withdrawing from operations outside the busi-

ness portfolio as defined in the plan.  Furthermore, we are working hard to

reduce debt and improve our balance sheet during this period.

In March 2001, Showa Denko K.K. merged with Showa Aluminum Corporation

to strengthen the high-value-added fabricated aluminum products operations.

We will make sure to realize technological synergies and strengthen our cost

position through substantial cost reductions.

Showa Denko is committed to the principle of Responsible Care and is vigor-

ously carrying out an action plan to implement its Responsible Care program.
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C
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note)

2000 1999 1998 2000

For the year
Net sales ................................................................. ¥0,747,000 ¥662,747 ¥0,730,906 $6,495,651
Operating income ..................................................... 29,594 25,073 28,696 257,342
Net income (loss) ...................................................... 2,763 (633) (15,184) 24,025
Capital expenditures ................................................. 40,023 37,180 49,004 348,026
Depreciation and amortization................................... 40,752 42,592 42,828 354,369

At year-end
Total assets .............................................................. 1,088,623 961,692 1,016,482 9,466,284
Total stockholders’ equity ......................................... 144,676 85,883 87,024 1,258,049

Yen U.S. dollars (Note)

Per share
Net income (loss) ...................................................... ¥002.66 ¥ (0.61) ¥(14.63) $0.023
Stockholders’ equity ................................................. 139.34 82.74 83.84 1.212
Cash dividends (applicable to the period) .................. — — 2.00 —

Number of employees at year-end........................... 13,207 12,475 13,464
Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥115 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange at

December 31, 2000.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Billions of yen)
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polishing (CMP) slurries, fine carbon for lithium-ion

batteries, and lead-free solder paste.

As for the Company’s consolidated performance in

2000, net sales totaled ¥747,000 million, an increase

of 12.7% from the previous term, and operating

income was up 18.0%, to ¥29,594 million. Net income

was held to a modest ¥2,763 million, however,

because we recorded an extraordinary loss of ¥9,655

million in additional retirement allowances for early

retirees to facilitate a reduction in workforce. As a

result, we had to continue to forgo the payment of divi-

dends for the term and we deeply apologize for this to

our stockholders.

Regarding capital investment in 2000, we stream-

lined our ethylene production facilities, consolidated

our polyethylene production lines, built a solid alu-

minum capacitor plant, and expanded our compound

semiconductor production capacity. Our capital

expenditures in 2000 totaled ¥40 billion as investments

were limited for the most part to rationalization, mainte-

nance, and environmental protection measures.

To improve our financial strength, we made all-out

efforts to reduce debt. As a result, the outstanding bal-

ance of debt, including that of newly consolidated

firms, as of the end of 2000 was down ¥27 billion from

a year before.

Showa Denko K.K. revalued the land it owns for

business use and recorded a ¥60,718 million revalua-

tion surplus, increasing its stockholders’ equity

¥58,792 million.

Segment Performances

Broken down by business segment, net sales and

operating income were as follows:

In the Petrochemicals Segment, sales rose 20.4%,

to ¥232,294 million, and operating income increased

9.1%, to ¥11,051 million. Sales from olefins operations

increased owing to higher selling prices that reflected

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT
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The Japanese economy was on the track for

gradual recovery in 2000 owing to increased

exports to Asian countries and growing capital

investments. In the fourth quarter, however, the

U.S. economy showed signs of a slowdown and

the recovery of Asian economies lost momentum.

The Japanese chemical industry, which benefited

from strong demand in Asian markets, had to

face softening demand and decreased exports in

the fourth quarter. The business environment for

the industry continued to be severe, due partly to

soaring naphtha prices that squeezed profits.

Promotion of Cheetah Project

Under such circumstances, Showa Denko K.K. and its

Group companies implemented measures defined in

the “Cheetah Project,” a medium-term consolidated

business plan that was introduced in 2000. In the initial

year under the plan, we cut debt ¥27 billion, reduced

the workforce by around 800 through an early retire-

ment system, decreased total labor costs, and sold

seven affiliated companies and two operations, making

significant progress in improving our financial strength.

We will continue making our best efforts throughout

2001 to achieve the goals of the Cheetah Project,

which aims to renovate our operations in the 2000-

2002 period to pave the way for future growth. We will

also step up our efforts to ensure that innovations to

our corporate culture will take root firmly.

In our electronics-related businesses, a key strategic

growth area for the Cheetah Project, we have made

aggressive investments. As a result, we are seeing

steady growth in businesses related to indium-phos-

phide (InP) epitaxial wafers for optical communications

equipment, specialty gases for semiconductor pro-

cessing, and rare earth magnetic alloys. Moreover, we

anticipate substantial growth in businesses related to

solid aluminum capacitors, chemical mechanical



higher feedstock costs, despite a fall in volume caused

by a long period of scheduled shutdown that coincided

with the streamlining of ethylene production facilities. 

Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd. (JPO), made efforts to

increase selling prices in response to rising feedstock

costs, but recorded lower sales as a result of the

transfer of its polypropylene business in June 1999.

Hymold Co., Ltd., a plastic injection molding company,

showed good results in its electronic components and

automotive parts operations. Sales from organic chem-

icals operations increased as selling prices of acetic

acid, vinyl acetate monomer, ethyl acetate and acry-

lonitrile rose. We streamlined our ethylene production

facilities in Oita to strengthen our competitive position.

In the Chemicals Segment, sales increased 23.3%,

to ¥78,782 million, while operating income decreased

2.3%, to ¥5,589 million. Sales from gases and chemi-

cals operations rose, mainly owing to increases in ship-

ments of industrial gases. In specialty chemicals

operations, shipments of vitamin C derivatives

increased. However, due to decreases in shipments of

pharmaceutical/agrochemical intermediates and the

transfer of the polyamide 6.6 business, sales from spe-

cialty chemicals operations declined. SDS Biotech K.K.

exported greater volumes of Daconil fungicide. Although

we withdrew from the marketing of HFC134a, we

started toll production of HFC134a for Asahi Glass

Co., Ltd.

In the Electronics Segment, sales increased 15.1%,

to ¥94,393 million, while operating income decreased

12.3%, to ¥1,342 million. Sales of compound semi-

conductors increased owing to larger demand for light-

emitting diodes (LEDs) for cellular phone applications

and increased shipments of InP epitaxial wafers for

optical communications equipment. However, sales of

hard disks (HDs) and memory disks fell sharply due to

a decline in shipments of aluminum-based HDs. Sales

of specialty gases increased due to brisk demand from
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the semiconductor industry. Sales of rare earth mag-

netic alloys and vapor-grown carbon fiber (VGCF) also

rose as a result of increased shipments.

We expanded our InP production capacity at

Chichibu and started shipments of solid conductive

polymer aluminum surface-mount capacitors from our

newly completed plant at Omachi. Showa Denko Air

Products Co., Ltd. expanded its CF4 and C2F6 pro-

duction capacities to meet growing demand for these

specialty gases for semiconductor processing.

In the Inorganic Materials Segment, sales fell 5.6%,

to ¥57,778 million, while operating income increased

9.1%, to ¥6,023 million. Despite our withdrawal from

the commodity refractories business as a means of

restructuring, sales of ceramics increased owing to

substantial increases in shipments of specialty alumina.

Sales of carbons and metallic materials declined due to

lower selling prices of graphite electrodes and higher

yen. Rationalization efforts contributed to the increase

in the Segment’s operating income.

In the Aluminum Segment, sales were up 8.0%, to

¥283,752 million, and operating income soared 54.5%,

Mitsuo Ohashi, President and CEO
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to ¥12,384 million. Shotic continuously cast aluminum

rods and their forged products business continued to do

well, and sales of aluminum ingots picked up thanks to

a recovery in the international market. Showa Aluminum

Alloy K.K.’s performances have improved as a result of

the integration of marketing and manufacturing func-

tions. In addition, the consolidated subsidiary Showa

Aluminum Corporation sold larger quantities of alu-

minum materials, including sheet, extrusions, and foils. 

Merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation

Showa Denko K.K. and Showa Aluminum Corporation

merged on March 30, 2001. The merger will facilitate

our efforts to strengthen the high-value-added, fabri-

cated aluminum products business defined as another

key business in the medium-term consolidated busi-

ness plan. We will strive to develop the synergies real-

ized through the merger as soon as possible.

The aluminum business is our largest, accounting

for about one-third of the Company’s net sales. Showa

Aluminum Corporation’s foils for electrolytic capacitors,

photosensitive drums, and automobile air conditioner

parts have been well received by the market due to the

high technological achievement they embody. By fus-

ing Showa Aluminum Corporation’s fabricating tech-

nology with Showa Denko K.K.’s inorganic/organic

chemical technologies, we are working to provide

high-quality, high-performance products to meet the

increasingly sophisticated and diversifying needs of the

market. In addition, we expect to achieve considerable

cost reductions as a result of the consolidation of both

companies’ head offices and sales offices, simplification

of the organization, and effective utilization of human

resources.

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

At a press conference announcing the merger between Showa Denko K.K.
(SDK) and Showa Aluminum Corporation (SAC), from left, Mr. Mitsuo
Ohashi, President and CEO of SDK, and Mr. Iwao Kojima, President of SAC

Photosensitive drums produced by SAC
and electrolytic capacitors containing

SAC’s aluminum foils

Ethylene Plant at Oita after streamlining
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In 2000, Showa Denko K.K.’s Tokuyama Regional

Office, Central Research Laboratory, and

Higashinagahara Regional Office obtained certificates

of compliance with the ISO 14001 international stan-

dard for environmental management systems, bringing

the total number of the Company’s ISO 14001-certified

sites to nine. (The Production Technology Center, Oita

Complex, and regional offices in Omachi, Kawasaki,

Shiojiri, and Chichibu have already obtained this certifi-

cation.) We will step up our Responsible Care activities

under the new organization following the merger with

Showa Aluminum Corporation.

Management is looking forward to your continued

support.

March 30, 2001

Mitsuo Ohashi, President and CEO

Strengthening of Compound Semiconductors
Business

We are one of the largest suppliers in the world of galli-

um-phosphide and gallium arsenide epitaxial wafers for

LEDs. These two product lines constitute the mainstay

of our compound semiconductors business. In addi-

tion, we have decided to expand our production

capacity at Chichibu for InP mirror wafers and epitaxial

wafers to meet rapidly growing demand for these

products’ use in photodiodes for optical communica-

tions equipment. InP is an essential material in the key

devices used in dense wavelength division multiplexing

(DWDM) systems to dramatically increase the amount

of information transmitted over the Internet through

optical glass fiber. After the expansion, our InP produc-

tion capacity in early 2002 will have approximately six

times the capacity it had at the beginning of 2000.

Promotion of Responsible Care Activities

We are committed to the principles of Responsible

Care, which means that we work to ensure the safety

and health of our employees and of people everywhere

as well as to protect the environment from harm caused

by chemical substances throughout such substances’

entire life cycles, namely, the development, production,

distribution, use, final consumption, and disposal of

these substances. Responsible Care activities are now

under way at our head office, four business segments

(comprising 10 business divisions and nine regional

offices), three branches, and 20 subsidiaries/affiliates

based on voluntary, specific action plans.

We are addressing a wide range of issues, including

energy conservation, a reduction in the discharge of

substances covered by the Pollutant Release and

Transfer Register Law, an expansion of recycling activi-

ties, and a cut in the volume of disposed waste. We

publish a Responsible Care report every year detailing

the results of our efforts.

InP compound semiconductors
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PPROGRESS IN IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CHEETAH PROJECT

Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies are proceeding
with implementation of the Cheetah Project, a medium-term
consolidated business plan that was introduced in 2000
under the slogan of “Transforming a diversified chemical
company into a focused, individualized chemical company.”

In the initial three-year period (2000-2002), we are carry-
ing out an action plan to renovate operations to pave the
way for future growth. During this period, we are strategi-
cally reducing the scope of operations while maintaining
investments in high growth potential areas.

Specifically, we are reducing fixed costs and improving
the consolidated balance sheet by selling operations and
affiliated companies that are not consistent with our target
business portfolio as well as reducing debts and personnel.
Through these measures, we intend to establish a stronger
base for earning power.

MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN 2000 WERE AS FOLLOWS:
� Reached agreement on the merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation.

The merger, which took effect in March 2001, will enable us to
strengthen high-value-added, fabricated aluminum products business. 

� Successfully expanded the electronics-related businesses, increasing
production capacities for compound semiconductors and semiconduc-
tor-processing specialty gases.

� Made progress in reducing debts and total labor cost, exceeding the
numerical targets set forth in the Cheetah Project.

THE FOLLOWING SHOWS HOW WE ARE MAKING PROGRESS
IN IMPLEMENTING THE CHEETAH PROJECT:
1. Status of achievement of goals set forth in the plan
(1) Sale of operations and affiliated companies

While the plan calls for sale of 15 or more affiliated companies by the
end of 2002, we sold seven companies, including Mibugawa Electric
Power K.K., and two operations in 2000. The sale helped us to reduce
debts by ¥8 billion and resulted in a ¥4.6 billion profit on sale.

(2) Reduction in personnel and total labor costs
The plan calls for reductions of 2,500 in headcount and ¥20 billion in
total labor costs compared with the levels at the end of 1998. When
employees of newly consolidated subsidiaries are excluded, we
achieved reductions of 2,300 in headcount and ¥17 billion in total labor
costs by the end of 2000. An early retirement support system was
implemented in 2000, which led to a reduction of around 800 in head-
count and resulted in an extraordinary loss of ¥9,655 million.

(3) Elimination of accumulated deficit
Due to the influence of changes in Japanese accounting systems, the
accumulated deficit at the end of 2000 was approximately ¥2 billion
larger than the figure at the end of 1999. However, partly as a result of
the merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation, the accumulated deficit
will substantially decrease, to around ¥15 billion, by the end of 2001.

(4) Reduction in debt
It is planned to reduce debt from ¥711.6 billion at the end of 1998 to
less than ¥600 billion by the end of 2002. At the end of 2000, we had
reduced debts by ¥27 billion, taking into account a ¥24 billion increase
in debt coming from newly consolidated subsidiaries. 

(5) Other numerical targets (in billions of yen)

1998 1999 2000 2001* 2002
Plan Result Plan Forecast Plan

Net sales 730.9 662.7 650.0 747.0 660.0 760.0 690.0

Operating income 28.6 25.1 38.0 29.6 46.0 38.0 51.0

ROA (Net income basis) -1.5% -0.1% 1.1% 0.3% 1.6% N.A. 2.0%

* The forecast for 2001 is based on the figures Showa Denko filed with the Tokyo Stock
Exchange on February 27, 2001.

2. Strategic moves in respective segments based on the target busi-
ness portfolio
(1) Electronics: Areas of high growth potential
� Compound semiconductors

The decision was made to substantially increase the production capaci-
ty for indium-phosphide (InP) wafers for use in photodiodes for optical
fiber communications equipment. It was also decided to advance into
the market of gallium-arsenide (GaAs) epitaxial wafers for electronic
device applications.

� Rare earth magnetic alloys
The world’s largest 1.5-ton furnace was installed, for start-up in spring
2001.

� Semiconductor processing specialty gases
New sites were added in Taiwan (second unit) and Singapore. We now
have four overseas sites in three countries. Production capacities for
CF4 and C2F6 were increased at Showa Denko Air Products Co., Ltd.

� Hard disks (HDs) and memory disks (MDs)
In 2000, the sales volume of aluminum-based HDs declined, resulting in
a substantially lower operating income for the HD business in view of
the goals defined in the Cheetah Project. Extensive cost reduction mea-
sures were taken for both HD and MD businesses.

Showa Denko is the sole HD vendor that produces both aluminum-
and glass-based HDs. While maintaining the industry-leading technolo-
gies, we implemented cost reduction measures in 2000, including cut in
production capacity. We placed on the market newly developed 1.8”
glass-substrate HDs for PC cards.

Showa Aluminum Corporation established an integrated MD produc-
tion setup in Malaysia in 2000 while reducing production in Japan,
achieving substantial cost reductions.

� New products
The following are new products we have developed as a result of the
fusion of inorganic and organic chemical technologies:

• Solid conductive polymer aluminum surface-mount capacitors
These products use our proprietary conductive polymer technology. A
commercial plant was completed in autumn 2000, and commercial pro-
duction began at the end of the year.

• Specialty ceramic polishing agents
We expanded the production of a ceria-based polishing agent for LCD
panels and glass substrates for HDs. We also began the commercial
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supply of chemical mechanical polishing (CMP) slurries for processing
semiconductor devices.

• Fine carbon (vapor-grown carbon fiber: VGCF)
Demand for this product is growing for use as an additive in lithium-
ion/polymer batteries.

• Lead-free solder paste
This product has been officially adopted in the manufacture of notebook
PCs. We expect an increasing demand for this environment-friendly
product.

(2) Aluminum: Focusing on high-value-added fabricated aluminum products
� Merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation

Showa Aluminum Corporation was well known worldwide for its leading
technologies and wide range of operations in such areas as high-purity
aluminum foils for capacitors, photosensitive drums for photocopiers,
and heat exchangers for automobile air conditioners. The merger will
facilitate technical consolidation, enabling us to provide high-performance,
high-quality fabricated aluminum products to the electronics and auto-
motive industries.

As a result of the merger, annual savings of ¥3-4 billion will be mate-
rialized three years after the merger through such measures as the con-
solidation of head offices and branches, the streamlining of the
organization, and the effective use of personnel.

Operations will be expanded through effective use of production/sales
units around the world. Showa Aluminum Corporation’s production
sites in the U.S.A., the Czech Republic, the Philippines, Thailand,
Indonesia, and Malaysia are now linked to Showa Denko’s aluminum
fabrication facilities in the U.S.A., Portugal, and Singapore.

� Consolidation of Group operations
Shotic Corporation, which owns casting/forging technologies comple-
menting Showa Aluminum Corporation’s technologies, will be merged
into Showa Denko by the middle of 2001. SKY Aluminium Co., Ltd., as
a stable supplier of aluminum materials, will strengthen its cost position.
Unifus Aluminum has been established as a joint marketing company
for SKY Aluminium Co., Ltd. and Furukawa Electric Co., Ltd. 

� Further growth of the high-value-added, fabricated aluminum products
business
The development of CPU cooling units and automotive suspension
parts will be facilitated. Shotic Corporation has developed an innovative
“S” process aluminum casting technology. Shotic Corporation’s plant in
Portugal has started the commercial production of automotive forged
parts. Shotic now has a total of four production sites: one each in
Japan, the U.S.A., Europe, and Southeast Asia.

� Reorganization of commodity product operations
Alloys manufacturing and marketing functions have been consolidated
at Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K. as of the beginning of 2000 to reduce
costs.

Shoko Co., Ltd., and Kyodo Light Metal Trading Co., Ltd., merged in
April 2000, consolidating aluminum-trading functions within the Showa
Denko Group and achieving cost reductions and greater marketing
strengths.

(3) Chemicals
� Specialty chemicals

We acquired a venture capital company specializing in the production of
photoresist ink.

Furthermore, we established a joint venture company, EC-Showa
Denko K.K., with EMS-Chemie AG of Switzerland, transferring our
polyamide 6.6 business to this joint venture.

SDS Biotech K.K. formed an alliance with FUMAKILLA Ltd. in the
areas of insecticides and fungicides by establishing a joint venture
FUMAKILLA • Totalsystem Ltd.

� Gases and chemicals: Earning power strengthened by reorganization 
In industrial gases operations, we sold three affiliated companies.
Meanwhile, we initiated the toll production of hydrofluorocarbon 134a
(alternative to chlorofluorocarbon) for Asahi Glass Co., Ltd.

(4) Petrochemicals—Measures taken to improve competitiveness
We completed work for the streamlining of our ethylene production facili-
ties in Oita in September 2000. Total annual production capacity has
strategically been reduced from 750,000 tons to 600,000 tons. The new
setup ensures the full operation of the ethylene plant almost all the time,
considerably strengthening our cost position. 

Construction work was started in Oita to consolidate JPO’s high-density
polyethylene production lines, reducing costs and improving quality.

In the polypropylene business, SunAllomer Ltd. invested in PolyMirae
Co., Ltd., of South Korea. 

(5) Inorganic materials—Progress of restructuring
This segment is providing technological support for Showa Denko’s
electronics business.

The ceramics business has recovered earning power as a result of the
withdrawal from unprofitable operations and a shift of focus to the elec-
tronics-related materials business.

Meanwhile, we sold the Atomiron electrolytic iron business in autumn
2000 and implemented cost reduction measures for our ferrochrome
operations in Japan.
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Chemicals

Chemicals (caustic soda and chlorine), gases (fluoro-
carbons, liquid ammonia, and nitrogen), specialty chemicals
(amino acids, analyzers, and columns), specialty polymers,
and agrochemicals

Electronics

HDs, compound semiconductors, rare earth magnetic
alloys, specialty gases, alternatives to chlorinated solvents
and other high-purity chemicals, ceramic materials for semi-
conductors, and fine carbons

Inorganic Materials

Ceramics (aluminum hydroxide, alumina, abrasives, and
refractories), carbons (graphite electrodes), and metallic
materials (ferrochromes)

Aluminum

Ingots, sheets, extruded products, foils, fabricated products
(heat exchangers and beverage cans), building products,
and engineering materials

Percentage of Net Sales Sales: 232,294
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 78,782
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 94,393
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 57,778
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 283,752
(Millions of yen)

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

10.5%

Petrochemicals

Olefins (ethylene and propylene), organic chemicals (acetic
acid, vinyl acetate monomer, ethyl acetate, and acrylonitrile),
polyethylene, and plastic products
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Petrochemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2000 1999 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 232,294 192,996 39,299 20.4%

Operating income 11,051 10,125 926 9.1%

In 2000, the Petrochemicals Segment’s sales rose
20.4%, to ¥232,294 million, due to increased selling
prices that reflected higher feedstock prices and the
contribution of the petrochemicals business of the
newly consolidated Shoko Co., Ltd. Operating income
jumped 9.1%, to ¥11,051 million, as higher selling
prices of organic chemicals more than offset the declin-
ing volume of ethylene sales and lower income of
Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd. (JPO).
Olefins Ethylene production in Japan totaled 7.61
million tons in 2000, almost leveling off at the record
7.68 million tons of 1999. While demand for ethylene in
Asia remained brisk, ethylene producers in Japan and
South Korea started reducing their production toward
the end of 2000 in response to start-ups of new ethyl-
ene plants in Taiwan and the Middle East.

With the prices of crude oil and naphtha remaining
high throughout the year, Showa Denko increased its
olefin selling prices as they are linked to feedstock
costs. The sales volume of olefins decreased due to a
long period of scheduled shutdown that coincided with
the streamlining of ethylene plant operations. All in all,
sales of olefins increased from 1999.

We demolished the older Ethylene Plant No. 1 and
expanded the capacity of Ethylene Plant No. 2—ratio-
nalization moves that resulted in a 20% cut in total
capacity and a better cost position. Our ethylene pro-
duction in 2000 amounted to 610,000 tons, compared
with 720,000 tons in 1999.
Organic Chemicals Sales of organic chemicals
increased as the market prices in Asia for acetic acid,
vinyl acetate monomer, ethyl acetate, and acrylonitrile
were up, reflecting soaring raw materials prices. Sales
also increased in the Japanese market, as we were
able to pass on the rise in feedstock costs in the form
of higher product prices.

The export of our epichlorohydrin technology to
Tianjin Bohai Chemical Industry (Group) Co., Ltd., has
been completed, with that company successfully con-
ducting a test run at its Tianjin Chemical Plant in May
2000. 

Plastics JPO made efforts to increase selling prices
in response to the rise in feedstock costs. However,
JPO’s sales declined as a result of the transfer of its
polypropylene business in June 1999. Hymold Co.,
Ltd., which is engaged in plastic injection molding oper-
ations, recorded increased sales as its electronic
machinery components and automotive parts sold well.

Chemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2000 1999 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 78,782 63,902 14,881 23.3%

Operating income 5,589 5,722 -133 -2.3%

The Chemicals Segment’s sales in 2000 were up
23.3%, to ¥78,782 million, thanks to increased sales in
Gases & Chemicals as well as the new consolidation of
Shoko Co., Ltd.’s chemicals business. However, the
Segment’s operating income fell 2.3%, to ¥5,589 mil-
lion, due mainly to lower selling prices of such specialty
chemicals as amino acids.
Gases & Chemicals Despite the decline in selling
prices of inorganic chemicals, gases & chemicals sales
rose mainly owing to increased shipments of industrial
gases. The jurisdiction over the epichlorohydrin busi-
ness was shifted from the Petrochemicals Segment to
the Chemicals Segment in 2000, which contributed to
the increased sales in this segment.

Note: From 2000, operating expenses that cannot be allocated to specific segments—mainly R&D expenses that do not belong to specific
segments—have been included in common/head office expenses. Figures for 1999 have been amended accordingly.

Tianjin Bohai Chemical Industry’s
epichlorohydrin plant based on
Showa Denko technology

Cosmetic products that include
Showa Denko’s APM

Ethylene Plant No. 2 as expanded
and streamlined
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Specialty Chemicals Sales of Specialty Chemicals
fell because of lower selling prices of glycine,
decreased shipments of pharmaceutical/agrochemical
intermediates, and the transfer of the polyamide 6.6
business to a joint venture company, EC-Showa
Denko K.K. Shipments of vitamin C derivatives
increased. SDS Biotech K.K., which operates agro-
chemical businesses, increased its sales slightly
despite the adverse effect of the stronger yen.
New Developments In April 2000, we reached an
agreement with Asahi Glass Co., Ltd., on a vertical
alliance in the area of refrigerant gas operations, in
which we would focus on the manufacture of HFC134a
while Asahi Glass focuses on the sale thereof. Accordingly,
we started toll production of HFC134a for Asahi Glass.

In the field of industrial gases, we sold our shares in
Hokkaido Industrial Gases Co., Ltd., in accordance
with our basic strategy of focusing on our main plants.
We also sold our shares in Kawaguchi Sogo Gas
Center Co., Ltd., and Kita-Kanto Sogo Gas Center
Co., Ltd., with a view to integrating our cylinder gas
business into Tokyo Koatsu Co., Ltd.

To expand our electronics materials operations, we
acquired Nippon Polytech Corp., a venture capital
company for the manufacture of photoresist ink used
in wiring boards, in December 1999.

In the polyamide 6.6 business, we established a
joint venture company, EC-Showa Denko K.K., in May
2000 with EMS Chemie AG of Switzerland, which is
the world’s leading manufacturer of specialty polyamide. 

SDS Biotech K.K. formed an alliance with FUMAKILLA
Ltd. in the areas of public health products, termiticides,
and industrial biocides. A joint venture company, FUMAKILLA
• Totalsystem Ltd., was set up in February 2000.

Electronics
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2000 1999 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 94,393 81,976 12,417 15.1%

Operating income 1,342 1,530 -188 -12.3%

Despite substantial declines in sales of hard disks
(HDs) and their aluminum substrates, the Electronics
Segment’s sales in 2000 increased 15.1%, to ¥94,393
million, owing to increased sales of compound semicon-
ductors, semiconductor-processing specialty gases, and
rare earth magnet alloys as well as to the consolidation
of Shoko Co., Ltd. However, operating income was down
12.3%, to ¥1,342 million, due to a sharp fall in sales
volumes of aluminum-based HDs and their substrates. 
HDs and Aluminum Substrates Continued
increases in memory densities caused the number of disks
per drive to fall, resulting in sharp declines in demand for
HD media and their selling prices. Although our glass-
based HD media for notebook PCs sold well, total HD
sales dropped substantially due to the marked decline in
the sales volume of aluminum-based HD media. Sales of
aluminum substrates also fell sharply due to lower demand.

In May 2000, we made the world’s first shipment
of 2 GB-per-piece 1.8” glass HD media. In the latter
part of 2000, we started the commercial production
and supply of 15,000-rpm HD media for enterprise
applications.

Showa Aluminum Corporation began the integrated
production of aluminum substrates in Malaysia in the
middle of 2000 and, at the same time, reduced its
production capacity in Japan as a means to cut
production costs.
Compound Semiconductors Sales of light-emit-
ting diodes (LEDs) increased substantially due to brisk
demand for their use in cellular phones and PCs. The
sales volume of gallium phosphide (GaP) LEDs hit an
all-time high, and sales of gallium aluminum arsenide
(GaAlAs) high-output infrared LEDs expanded. We
initiated the manufacture and sale of aluminum indium
gallium phosphide (AlInGaP) yellow-green LEDs, with
an emission wavelength of 570 nm.

With the rapid expansion of North American markets
for optical fiber communications equipment based on
wavelength division multiplexing (WDM) technology,
sales of our indium-phosphide (InP) materials increased
sharply, centering on epitaxial wafers for photodiodes
made by the metal-organic chemical vapor deposition
(MOCVD) process. Sales of silicon epitaxial wafers also

Chemical Sector’s major production
site in Kawasaki 

RREVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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increased in line with the growing demand for electronic
devices.

We have decided to expand our InP production
capacity to meet growing demand for optical fiber
communications equipment. Our production capacities
for InP mirror wafers and MOCVD epitaxial wafers will
both be tripled by summer 2001 compared with the
beginning of 2000.
Rare Earths Sales of neodymium-based rare earth
magnet alloys increased substantially, with sales vol-
umes rising about 30% from 1999, more than offsetting
the fall in selling prices. Our neodymium-based alloy
production facilities, including the world’s largest 1,000
kg furnace, were run at full capacity. 

Prices of raw materials for rare earth magnet alloys
soared in 2000. In response, we completed facilities
for fully utilizing scrap resulting from the magnet
manufacturing processes.
Specialty Gases for 
Semiconductor Processing Sales of our semi-
conductor-processing specialty gases, scrubbers, and
high-purity chemicals grew considerably due to stronger
demand from the semiconductor industry.

To meet growing demand from the semiconductor
industry, we expanded our CF4 and C2F6 fluorine gas
production capacities at our joint venture Showa Denko
Air Products Co., Ltd., and increased high-purity
ammonia production capacity as well. We established
Showa Specialty Gas Singapore Pte. Ltd. in 2000 as
part of our move to serve the regional semiconductor
industry, which has been emerging quickly in recent
years. Similar Showa Denko Group specialty gas sub-
sidiaries are already operating in Taiwan and Shanghai.
Ceramics Despite lower shipments of polishing
materials for the aluminum-substrates for HDs, overall
ceramics sales went up owing to increased shipments
of micropowders for polishing cathode-ray tubes and
a ceria-based polishing agent (ROX) for LCD panels. 

We withdrew from the unprofitable fused-silica
semiconductor-sealant business. Meanwhile, we
started up a commercial plant for producing chemical
mechanical polishing (CMP) slurries for processing
semiconductor devices. Furthermore, we expanded
our ceria-based agent production capacity to meet
growing demand for polishing LCD panels and glass-
substrates for HDs.

Carbons We recorded increased sales of our vapor-
grown carbon fiber (VGCF) as the lithium-ion battery
market continued to enjoy steady growth.
New Developments We started up a new com-
mercial plant for solid conductive polymer aluminum
surface-mount capacitors and started shipments in
October 2000. Their very low ESR (equivalent series
resistance), among other things, characterizes our
solid aluminum capacitors.

Our lead-free tin/zinc solder paste has been adopt-
ed in part of NEC’s desktop PCs. We licensed our pro-
prietary Super jUFFIT precoating technology to two
manufacturers.

Inorganic Materials
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2000 1999 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 57,778 61,192 -3,414 -5.6%

Operating income 6,023 5,521 502 9.1%

In 2000, the Inorganic Materials Segment’s sales
declined 5.6%, to ¥57,778 million, due to a fall in sell-
ing prices of graphite electrodes that exceeded the
effect of an increase in the sales volume of ceramics.
However, segment operating income grew 9.1%, to
¥6,023 million, as a result of increased sales of ceram-
ics and rationalization efforts.
Ceramics Sales of ceramics increased as specialty
products, such as specialty alumina for electronics
applications, sold well in Japan. Export sales of ceram-
ics to South Korea and Taiwan increased as well. Our
strategy in the ceramics business is to focus on areas
where we can offer high-value-added, differentiated
products while withdrawing from unprofitable opera-
tions and cutting costs. Based on this strategy, we

An HD drive containing Showa Denko’s 1.8” HD

Solid conductive polymer aluminum
surface-mount capacitors

Compound semiconductors offered by Showa Denko
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withdrew from the commodity refractories business
and expanded our high-purity titanium oxide produc-
tion capacity.
Carbons & Metallic Materials Sales of graphite
electrodes fell due to lower export prices and a stronger
yen. Sales volumes in Japan stayed at a low level that
reflected continued production cutbacks among electric
furnace steelmakers. Showa Denko Carbon, Inc.’s sales
dropped owing to lower selling prices. Our high-carbon
ferrochrome business had larger sales, as it maintained
high plant utilization. Meanwhile, we withdrew from the
high-purity electrolytic iron Atomiron business.

Aluminum
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2000 1999 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 283,752 262,682 21,070 8.0%

Operating income 12,384 8,016 4,367 54.5%

In 2000, the Aluminum Segment’s sales rose 8.0%, to
¥283,752 million, and its operating income soared
54.5%, to ¥12,384 million.

Our aluminum ingot sales increased due to higher
international market prices and gradual recovery in
domestic demand. Sales of Shotic forged aluminum
products increased because of growth in automobile
air conditioner parts applications that more than offset
their lower usage in VCR parts applications. Showa
Aluminum Alloy K.K. recorded increased sales due to a
greater sales volume that reflected recovery in automo-
bile production in Japan. The company was also suc-
cessful in reducing costs as a result of the integration
of production and marketing. Showa Aluminum
Corporation increased its sales of fabricated aluminum
products as it sold larger quantities of sheet, extru-
sions, and foils for capacitors. Newly consolidated
Shoko Co., Ltd.’s aluminum business also contributed
to increased sales in this segment.
New Developments We announced the merger
between Showa Denko K.K. and Showa Aluminum
Corporation in March 2001 as a means to strengthen
our high-value-added, fabricated aluminum products
business.

In January 2000, Showa Denko K.K.’s aluminum
alloy marketing business was transferred to our alu-
minum alloy producing subsidiary Showa Aluminum
Alloy K.K. 
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R
To consolidate the Showa Denko Group’s aluminum

trading functions, Kyodo Light Metal Trading Co., Ltd.,
a company exclusively engaged in aluminum sales,
was merged with Shoko Co., Ltd., in April 2000.

In July 2000, we announced the development of the
uni-directional solidification casting process for the
production of blanks for aluminum forgings.

Shotic Corporation has decided to expand its
production capacity of horizontal continuous cast
aluminum rods for completion in autumn 2001.

Showa Aluminum Corporation has succeeded in
developing a copper-aluminum hybrid heat sink for
Intel’s “Pentium 4” (Note) CPU. Its development work
will be continued in cooperation with Nissei Sangyo
Co., Ltd.

Note: Pentium is a trademark of Intel Corporation

Shaped articles of advanced ceramics

Showa Aluminum’s CPU cooling system

Fabricated aluminum products based on the innovative uni-directional
solidification casting process
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RRESPONSIBLE CARE ACTIVITIES

Showa Denko has been performing its Responsible

Care activities since 1995, when it established

guidelines for action to implement the program.

In line with the basic action plan prepared by the

Responsible Care Committee, Responsible Care

activities are going on at our four business seg-

ments (10 business divisions and nine regional

offices), three branches, the Central Research

Laboratory, the Production Technology Center,

and 20 subsidiaries/affiliates based on their

respective action plans. The following are some

examples of our activities:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
We are making our best efforts to conserve energy to
contribute to the prevention of global warming and
protection of natural resources. Our basic energy unit
in 1999 had been reduced to 97% of the 1990 figure.
More than 20% of our total electricity requirements are
met by our hydroelectric power plants, a clean source
of energy.

REDUCTION IN INDUSTRIAL WASTES
We are committed to effectively using, and reducing
the volume of discharge of industrial wastes. Owing to
the use of waste oil as fuel (heat recovery) and use of

ENVIRONMENT-RELATED INVESTMENT
(cumulative value since 1990)

Cumulative investment value (billions of yen)
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A green belt at 
Oita Petrochemical Complex

Clean S scrubber for 
the treatment of exhaust gas

from semiconductor production

inorganic sludge (as cement, for example), the final
volume of landfill disposal in 1999 had been reduced
to around 50% of the 1990 base level.

DEVELOPMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENT-FRIENDLY 
PRODUCTS AND TECHNOLOGIES

We are working hard to develop products and tech-
nologies that contribute to the protection of the envi-
ronment, safety, and health. Examples include Bionolle
biodegradable plastic, separators for fuel cells, and
Clean S perfluorocarbon-gas-treating scrubbers.

ACQUISITION OF ISO 14001
CERTIFICATION

In 2000, Showa Denko’s two regional offices and
Central Research Laboratory obtained certificates of
compliance with the ISO 14001 international standards
for environmental management systems. As of the end
of 2000, six regional offices, the Oita Complex, the
Central Research Laboratory, the Production
Technology Center, and 12 subsidiaries/affiliates were
certified under the standards.

Following the merger with Showa Aluminum
Corporation on March 30, 2001, Showa Denko has
established a new organization that includes the
Aluminum Materials Sector and the Aluminum
Fabricated Products Sector. Under the new setup, 
we will further strengthen our 
commitment to Responsible 
Care activities.
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In the medium-term consolidated business plan

that it began implementing in 2000, Showa Denko

targets the electronics, automotive, and personal

care/environment markets as high-growth areas.

Thus, the Company is focusing its R&D resources

on electronics-related materials, high-value-

added fabricated aluminum products, and fine

chemicals. Special emphasis is put on the devel-

opment of unique materials, centering on next-

generation electronics-related materials, through

the fusion of inorganic material technologies (fine

ceramics, carbons, etc.) and organic materials

technologies.

Total R&D investment in 2000 decreased 26.3%

over the preceding year as we narrowed the

scope of research, transferring relevant research

themes to business divisions, and as the recent

changes in the Japanese accounting standards

resulted in a narrower definition of R&D expens-

es. The Company will continue allocating R&D

resources in line with the medium-term consoli-

dated business plan.

Showa Denko and its Group companies invest-

ed ¥16.6 billion, or 2.2% of its consolidated net

sales, in R&D in 2000. 

ACTIVITIES IN STRATEGIC AREAS

1. Electronics-Related Materials

The demand for compound semiconductors is contin-

uing to grow in the areas of display and communica-

tions equipment. Reflecting this trend, we have been

developing high-quality products and expanding the

range of our product lines. Specifically, we have used

our metal-organic chemical vapor deposition (MOCVD)

technology in the development of aluminum-gallium-

indium-phosphide (AlGaInP) LEDs with raised bright-

ness and diverse colors as well as epitaxial wafers that

emit visible-light laser beams for DVDs or long-wave

laser beams for optical communications. The same

technology is also used in the development of gallium-

arsenide (GaAs) epitaxial wafers for electronic devices,

and gallium-nitride (GaN) LEDs.

In the area of energy devices, we have built a pilot

plant for solid aluminum capacitors based on a propri-

etary technology. We will continue our R&D efforts to

meet the demand for capacitors with still higher perfor-

mance for use with mobile information equipment.

As the memory density of hard disk (HD) media is now

increasing at an annual rate of over 100%, we are pro-

moting R&D to meet demand and have been developing

glass-substrate HD media for use mainly in notebook

RRESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Production of compound semiconductors in Chichibu
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PCs. To achieve higher memory density and differentiate

our products, we will continue developing technologies

pertaining to the processing of the HD base layer and

working to improve the magnetic and protective layers. 

In the field of surface-mounting technologies, we

have succeeded in commercializing a lead-free

tin/zinc-based solder paste. We are developing various

grades of this environment-friendly solder paste to

meet customer needs. In addition, we are developing

markets for the Super jUFFIT process, which is effec-

tive in precoating using lead-free solder paste.

Based on our metal refining/production technolo-

gies, we have commercialized rare earth magnetic

alloys, including neodymium-iron-boron alloy. We have

developed new casting technologies to control the

microstructures of rare earth magnetic alloys and are

developing new processes with a view to ensuring

higher performance.

2. Inorganic Materials, Carbons, and Others

Our development efforts in the area of inorganic

materials focus on ultra-fine metal oxides such as

titania, alumina, zinc oxide, and ceria as well as high-

performance carbon materials. 

To facilitate the development of markets for our

ultra-fine metal oxides, we formed a project team that

combines development, production and marketing

functions. As a result, we have made substantial progress

in developing new applications. Namely, our high-

purity very-fine-particle TiO2 is now used as a raw

material for high-performance capacitors and in resin

composites and paints due to its photocatalysis func-

tion. Other applications for our ultra-fine metal oxides

include UV-shielding materials in cosmetics and polish-

ing slurries for next-generation semiconductor devices.

In particular, we commercialized chemical mechanical

polishing slurries for the LSI manufacturing process.

We will continue promoting R&D in this area to meet

increasing demand for further miniaturization of elec-

tronic devices.

In the area of high-performance carbon materials,

we made progress in the development of high-capacity

cathode carbon for use in lithium-ion secondary batter-

ies and of separators for polymer electrolyte fuel cells.

Furthermore, we have established a pilot plant for

developing a technology to synthesize carbon nan-

otubes in large quantities based on a gas-phase

process, as part of our participation in a national project.

3. Specialty Chemicals

The development of functional chemicals is progress-

ing, centering on photosensitive materials, base mate-

rials for cosmetics, and organic intermediates for

pharmaceuticals and agrochemicals.

We are developing photoresist ink, photosensitive

coverlay film and photo initiator through Nippon

Polytech Corp., a company in which we have obtained

the majority share.

We have developed a low-stimulus surface-active

agent that will enable the original designing of cosmet-

ics. This new product is in its final stage toward com-

mercialization.

In the field of agrochemical intermediates, develop-

ment has started for two new types of compounds in

which our raw materials’ position can be fully utilized.

We continued research into organic intermediates,

including a new raw material for photographic chemi-

cals and biodegradable chelating agents.

Showa Highpolymer Co., Ltd., one of our affiliated

companies, has succeeded in mass-producing an

emulsion of Bionolle biodegradable plastic. We will aim

at developing various applications for the product,

including as a coating for paper.

A tomography of vapor-grown carbon fiber (VGCF)

Ceria-based CMP slurry
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CONSOLIDATED SIX-YEAR SUMMARY M
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note)

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 2000

For the year
Net sales ......................................................... ¥0,747,000 ¥662,747 ¥   730,906 ¥   797,790 ¥570,312 ¥540,274 $6,495,651

Petrochemicals............................................ 232,294 192,996 218,240 251,174 224,242 204,174 2,019,951
Chemicals ................................................... 78,782 63,902 71,720 68,065 69,480 67,688 685,064
Electronics................................................... 94,393 81,976 85,412 89,117 75,823 58,323 820,810
Inorganic Materials ...................................... 57,778 61,192 75,396 78,985 65,140 63,715 502,420
Aluminum .................................................... 283,752 262,682 280,137 310,450 135,627 146,375 2,467,405

Operating income............................................ 29,594 25,073 28,696 45,585 25,594 34,466 257,342
Net income (loss)............................................. 2,763 (633) (15,184) 9,501 3,060 (193) 24,025
R&D expenditures ........................................... 16,588 22,513 23,770 22,667 18,336 18,503 144,247
Capital expenditures........................................ 40,023 37,180 49,004 64,006 42,805 N/A 348,026
Depreciation and amortization ......................... 40,752 42,592 42,828 40,478 24,581 N/A 354,369

At year-end
Total assets ..................................................... 1,088,623 961,692 1,016,482 1,031,568 729,155 766,957 9,466,284
Total stockholders’ equity................................ 144,676 85,883 87,024 105,156 95,692 91,929 1,258,049

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note)

Per share
Net income (loss)............................................. ¥002.66 ¥ (0.61) ¥(14.63) ¥    9.15 ¥  2.95 ¥ (0.19) $0.023
Stockholders’ equity........................................ 139.34 82.74 83.84 101.30 92.19 88.56 1.212
Cash dividends 
(applicable to the period) ............................... — — 2.00 3.00 — — —

Number of employees at year-end.................. 13,207 12,475 13,464 13,555 8,860 8,981
Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥115 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange at December 31, 2000.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31
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MMANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Consolidated net sales in 2000 totaled ¥747,000 million (US$6,496 million), an

increase of ¥84,252 million, or 12.7%, from the previous term. This was due

mainly to a rise in the selling prices of petrochemicals, which reflected higher

feedstock cost, and increases in sales in the Aluminum and Electronics seg-

ments as a result of the new consolidation of Shoko Co., Ltd. and Showa

Aluminum Corporation’s subsidiaries in the Czech Republic and Malaysia.

Cost of sales increased ¥76,174 million, or 14.1%, to ¥616,253 million

(US$5,359 million), due mainly to the higher cost of petrochemical feedstock.

Owing to rationalization efforts, the year-on-year increase in selling, general

and administrative expenses was held to a modest ¥3,557 million, or 3.6%, to

¥101,153 million (US$880 million). 

Operating income was up ¥4,521 million, or 18.0%, to ¥29,594 million

(US$257 million). The main contributing factors were the increase in the operat-

ing income of the Aluminum Segment, due to improved performances of

Showa Aluminum Corporation and Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K., the new con-

solidation of Shoko Co., Ltd.’s aluminum operations, as well as a rise in the

operating income of the Petrochemicals Segment, which reflected the

improved performance of the organic chemicals operations.

R&D expenditures decreased ¥5,924 million, or 26.3%, to ¥16,588 million

(US$144 million), owing to a narrower definition of R&D expenses that resulted

from recent changes in Japanese accounting standards and our decision to nar-

row the scope of our research.

Broken down by business segment, net sales and operating income were as

follows:

(Note: From 2000, operating expenses that cannot be allocated to specific

segments—mainly R&D expenses that do not belong to specific segments—

have been included in common/head office expenses. Figures for 1999 have

been amended accordingly.)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NET SALES BY SEGMENT
(Billions of yen)
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Petrochemicals Segment

Although the sales volume of ethylene decreased due to a long period of

scheduled shutdown that coincided with the streamlining of ethylene plant

operations, sales of olefins increased due to higher selling prices that reflected

increased feedstock costs. Sales of organic chemicals increased as selling

prices of acetic acid, vinyl acetate monomer, ethyl acetate, and acrylonitrile

rose. Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd. (JPO), engaged in the polyethylene business,

recorded lower sales because of the transfer of its polypropylene business in

June 1999. In addition, the new consolidation of the petrochemicals business-

es of Shoko Co., Ltd., and Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd., contributed to sales

increases. As a result, the Petrochemicals Segment’s sales increased ¥39,299

million, or 20.4%, to ¥232,294 million (US$2,020 million), and operating income

was up ¥926 million, or 9.1%, to ¥11,051 million (US$96 million), due mainly to

improvements in the profitability of organic chemicals operations.

Chemicals Segment

Sales of gases and chemicals increased due to higher shipments of industrial

gases. Sales of specialty chemicals declined because of lower shipments of

pharmaceutical/agrochemical intermediates and the transfer of the polyamide

6.6 business. All in all, the Chemicals Segment’s sales rose ¥14,881 million, or

23.3%, to ¥78,782 million (US$685 million). However, operating income

decreased ¥133 million, or 2.3%, to ¥5,589 million (US$49 million), owing to

decreased shipments of specialty chemicals.

Electronics Segment

Sales in businesses related to HDs dropped substantially due to the lower

sales volumes of aluminum-based HDs and aluminum substrates for HDs

(MDs). Meanwhile, sales of compound semiconductors increased due to an

active demand for LEDs for use in cellular phones and increased shipments of

InP wafers for optical fiber communications equipment. Sales of semiconductor-

processing specialty gases and rare earth magnetic alloys increased owing to

increases in sales volumes. As a result, the Electronics Segment’s sales

increased ¥12,417 million, or 15.1%, to ¥94,393 million (US$821 million), but

OPERATING INCOME
(Billions of yen)
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MMANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

operating income slipped ¥188 million, or 12.3%, to ¥1,342 million (US$12 mil-

lion), due to substantial declines in the sales volumes of HDs and MDs.

Inorganic Materials Segment

Ceramics operations had higher sales due to increased sales volume of spe-

cialty alumina products, which more than compensated for the effect of the

Company’s withdrawal from the commodity refractories business. Carbons

and metallic materials operations had lower sales as selling prices of graphite

electrodes declined despite increases in the sales volumes of the products.

Showa Denko Carbon, Inc., saw a decline in sales because of lower sales vol-

ume and falling selling prices. As a result, the Inorganic Materials Segment’s

sales fell ¥3,414 million, or 5.6%, to ¥57,778 million (US$502 million), but oper-

ating income increased ¥502 million, or 9.1%, to ¥6,023 million (US$52 mil-

lion), due mainly to increased shipments of ceramics and rationalization efforts

in ceramics operations.

Aluminum Segment

Sales of aluminum ingots increased due to higher international market prices,

and sales of Shotic aluminum forgings rose as a result of increased shipments.

Showa Aluminum Corporation had higher sales of sheet, extrusions, and foils

due to increases in sales volumes. The new consolidation of Shoko Co., Ltd.’s

aluminum operations contributed to higher sales in this segment. As a result,

the Aluminum Segment’s sales increased ¥21,070 million, or 8.0%, to

¥283,752 million (US$2,467 million). Operating income soared ¥4,367 million,

or 54.5%, to ¥12,384 million (US$108 million), due to the improved perfor-

mances of Showa Aluminum Corporation, Shotic Corporation, and Showa

Aluminum Alloy K.K. as well as the new consolidation of Shoko Co., Ltd.

Operations in Japan

Although sales by JPO decreased, several companies, including Shoko Co.,

Ltd., and Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd., have newly been consolidated. As a result,

sales by domestic companies increased ¥94,697 million, or 16.3%, to

¥674,095 million (US$5,862 million). Operating income increased ¥7,090 mil-

lion, or 28.0%, to ¥32,451 million (US$282 million), due partly to a recovery in

Showa Denko K.K.’s performance.

Operations Overseas

Despite the start-up of ethyl acetate operations in Indonesia, the progress in

the appreciation of the yen resulted in lower yen-based sales by overseas

companies. As a result, sales by overseas companies fell ¥10,445 million, or

12.5%, to ¥72,905 million (US$634 million). Operating income declined ¥1,876

million, or 32.2%, to ¥3,947 million (US$34 million).

The gap between interest expense and interest and dividend income declined

¥469 million, to ¥12,027 million (US$105 million), due to our strenuous efforts to

reduce debt. Gain on the sale of marketable and investment securities, net,

increased ¥102 million, to ¥2,347 million (US$20 million). Gain on the sale of

property, plant and equipment, net, increased ¥1,323 million, to ¥6,065 million

(US$53 million), due partly to the sale of Mibugawa Electric Power K.K. The

Company recorded loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net, in

the amount of ¥6,420 million (US$56 million) due to restructuring measures. As

part of steps to strengthen competitiveness in line with the Cheetah Project, the

Company reduced its workforce by approximately 800 through an early retire-

ment system and posted special severance pay of ¥9,655 million (US$84 mil-

lion). As a result, the Company posted a loss before income taxes of ¥279

million (US$2 million). However, after the calculation of income taxes, net, of a

tax credit of ¥891 million (US$8 million) and minority interests of ¥2,150 million

(US$19 million), the Company recorded net income of ¥2,763 million (US$24

million) compared with a net loss of ¥633 million in the previous term.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) AND NET INCOME

GEOGRAPHICAL AREA INFORMATION

NET INCOME (LOSS)
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Total Assets

Total assets increased ¥126,930 million, to ¥1,088,623 million (US$9,466 mil-

lion), due mainly to a ¥104,686 million increase in the value of land that resulted

from the revaluation at the end of 2000 of the land owned mainly by Showa

Denko K.K. for business use. Cash and cash equivalents decreased ¥13,984

million, to ¥33,067 million (US$288 million), as the Company gave priority to

the reduction in debt. Notes and accounts receivable increased ¥10,136 mil-

lion, to ¥193,191 million (US$1,680 million), due mainly to the new consolida-

tion of Shoko Co., Ltd. Inventories rose ¥11,417 million, to ¥86,477 million

(US$752 million), due to the consolidation of additional subsidiaries and the rise

in petrochemicals feedstock costs in the latter half of the term.

Liabilities

Interest-bearing debt (including discount of notes receivable) fell ¥26,866 mil-

lion, to ¥646,903 million (US$5,625 million), notwithstanding an approximate

¥24,000 million increase due to the consolidation of more subsidiaries.

Following the revaluation of land, the Company recorded deferred tax liability of

¥43,968 million (US$382 million).

Stockholders’ Equity

Revaluation surplus of ¥60,718 million (US$528 million) was recorded because

of the revaluation of land. Accumulated deficits increased ¥2,006 million, to

¥68,214 million (US$593 million), due to prior-period adjustments following the

application for the first time of tax-effect accounting. As a result, total stock-

holders’ equity increased ¥58,792 million, to ¥144,676 million (US$1,258 million).

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were up ¥2,843 million, to ¥40,023 million (US$348 mil-

lion). Chief items among capital expenditures were the streamlining of ethylene

production facilities, the consolidation of JPO’s high-density polyethylene pro-

duction lines, and the construction of a solid conductive polymer aluminum

capacitor plant.

FINANCIAL POSITION Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was relatively small at ¥43,443 million

(US$378 million), as sharp increases in costs of naphtha and other raw materi-

als more than offset the increased cash supply from the discount of notes

receivable and depreciation and amortization of ¥40,752 million (US$354 mil-

lion). Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥20,751 million

(US$180 million), as some capital expenditures were covered by proceeds

from the sale of property, plant and equipment as well as from sales of mar-

ketable and investment securities. The amount of free cash flows came to

¥22,692 million (US$197 million). Net cash used in financing activities totaled

¥51,304 million (US$446 million), because priority was given to the reduction of

interest-bearing debt, which is one of the main goals of the Cheetah Project.

As a result, the decrease in cash and cash equivalents was ¥29,825 million

(US$259 million), and cash and cash equivalents at end of the year were ¥33,067

million (US$288 million).

This annual report contains statements relating to management’s projections of

future profits, the possible achievement of the Company’s financial goals and

objectives, and management’s expectations for the Company’s product devel-

opment program. The Company cannot guarantee that these expectations and

projections will be realized or correct. Actual results may differ materially from

the results anticipated in the statements included herein due to a variety of fac-

tors, including such economic factors as fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates as well as market supply and demand conditions. The timely

commercialization of products under development by the Company may be

disrupted or delayed by a variety of factors, including market acceptance, the

introduction of new products by competitors, and changes in regulations or

laws. The foregoing list of factors is not inclusive.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
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CCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

ASSETS 2000 1999 2000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents............................................................................................................ ¥0,033,067 ¥047,051 $0,287,540
Marketable securities (Notes 2 and 5)............................................................................................ 14,062 15,305 122,281
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 8) ....................................................................................... 193,191 183,055 1,679,920
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Notes 2 and 3)........................................................................ (2,197) (1,464) (19,101)
Inventories (Note 2) ....................................................................................................................... 86,477 75,060 751,970
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................................................................................... 19,329 16,654 168,075

Total current assets........................................................................................................... 343,929 335,661 2,990,685

Property, plant and equipment (Note 2)
Land ............................................................................................................................................. 303,075 170,072 2,635,434
Buildings and structures................................................................................................................ 206,348 193,206 1,794,329
Machinery and equipment ............................................................................................................. 652,740 621,445 5,676,000
Construction in progress ............................................................................................................... 7,068 14,943 61,457

......................................................................................................................................................... 1,169,230 999,666 10,167,219
Less: Accumulated depreciation.................................................................................................... (569,793) (530,372) (4,954,722)

Net property, plant and equipment............................................................................................ 599,437 469,294 5,212,497

Investments and other assets
Investment securities (Note 2)........................................................................................................ 79,731 90,336 693,313
Long-term loans ........................................................................................................................... 8,405 6,301 73,091
Other............................................................................................................................................. 35,661 36,478 310,095
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Notes 2 and 3)........................................................................... (2,468) (1,888) (21,461)

......................................................................................................................................................... 121,329 131,228 1,055,038

Excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired ..................................................................... 21,154 23,191 183,949
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2) ..................................................................... 2,773 2,319 24,115

Total assets....................................................................................................................... ¥1,088,623 ¥961,692 $9,466,284

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
At December 31, 2000 and 1999
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2000 1999 2000

Current liabilities
Short-term debt ............................................................................................................................ ¥0,230,723 ¥273,806 $2,006,289
Current portion of long-term debt.................................................................................................. 63,756 21,753 554,397
Notes and accounts payable (Note 8)............................................................................................ 144,102 125,812 1,253,063
Accrued liabilities

Income taxes............................................................................................................................. 3,595 2,946 31,261
Other......................................................................................................................................... 3,330 5,366 28,957

Other current liabilities ................................................................................................................... 33,128 24,057 288,067

Total current liabilities ........................................................................................................ 478,634 453,739 4,162,033

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt less current portion .............................................................................................. 350,076 377,351 3,044,139
Employees’ severance indemnities (Notes 2 and 3) ....................................................................... 5,464 4,434 47,513
Other long-term liabilities ............................................................................................................... 64,101 8,328 557,403

Total long-term liabilities .................................................................................................... 419,641 390,114 3,649,055

Minority interests ........................................................................................................................... 45,672 31,956 397,147

Contingent liabilities (Note 7)

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, par value ¥50 per share

Authorized, 3,300,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding, 2000—1,038,259,982 shares ............................................................. 105,459 — 917,038
Issued and outstanding, 1999—1,038,035,982 shares ............................................................. — 105,448 —

Additional paid-in capital ............................................................................................................... 46,695 46,643 406,039
Revaluation surplus (Note 13) ........................................................................................................ 60,718 — 527,982
Securities valuation surplus ........................................................................................................... 18 — 161
Accumulated deficits ..................................................................................................................... (68,214) (66,208) (593,169)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 2000—316 shares........................................................................... (0) — (2)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 1999—602 shares........................................................................... — (0) —

Total stockholders’ equity.................................................................................................. 144,676 85,883 1,258,049

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............................................................................. ¥1,088,623 ¥961,692 $9,466,284
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME C
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

2000 1999 2000

Net sales............................................................................................................................................ ¥747,000 ¥662,747 $6,495,651
Cost of sales ..................................................................................................................................... 616,253 540,079 5,358,719

Gross profit ..................................................................................................................................... 130,747 122,669 1,136,932
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............................................................................... 101,153 97,596 879,590

Operating income............................................................................................................................ 29,594 25,073 257,342

Other income (expenses)
Interest and dividend income........................................................................................................... 1,905 1,801 16,562
Gain on the sale of marketable and investment securities, net ......................................................... 2,347 2,245 20,404
Interest expense .............................................................................................................................. (13,932) (14,297) (121,145)
Gain on the sale of property, plant and equipment, net.................................................................... 6,065 4,742 52,743
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net................................................................... (6,420) (2,649) (55,828)
Write-down of marketable and investment securities ....................................................................... (2,469) (1,813) (21,469)
Loss incurred in connection with the L-tryptophan litigations ........................................................... (365) (822) (3,171)
Showa Denko Carbon, Inc., related loss.......................................................................................... — (1,384) —
Special severance pay..................................................................................................................... (9,655) (3,404) (83,957)
Other, net ........................................................................................................................................ (7,349) (5,349) (63,906)

Income (loss) before income taxes................................................................................................. (279) 4,143 (2,425)
Income taxes (Note 2)

Current ............................................................................................................................................ 4,574 4,367 39,775
Deferred .......................................................................................................................................... (5,465) (913) (47,525)

Minority interests ............................................................................................................................. 2,150 (1,321) 18,699

Net income (loss)................................................................................................................. ¥002,763 ¥      (633) $0,024,025

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 4)

Per share amounts
Net income (loss)............................................................................................................................. ¥2.66 ¥(0.61) $0.023

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Thousands Millions of yen

Retained
Number of Additional Securities earnings
shares of Common paid-in Revaluation valuation (accumulated

common stock stock capital surplus surplus deficits)

Balance at December 31, 1998 ..................................................... 1,038,036 ¥105,448 ¥46,643 ¥       — ¥ — ¥(65,067)

Net loss for the year ...................................................................... — — — — — (633)
Cash dividends at ¥2.00 per share ................................................ — — — — — (2,076)
Adjustment for the adoption of deferred tax accounting 
in consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates..................................... — — — — — 1,853

Increase due to inclusion in consolidation...................................... — — — — — 216
Increase due to inclusion in equity method .................................... — — — — — 26
Decrease due to inclusion in consolidation .................................... — — — — — (472)
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses .................................... — — — — — (54)

Balance at December 31, 1999 ..................................................... 1,038,036 ¥105,448 ¥46,643 ¥       — ¥ — ¥(66,208)

Share exchange ............................................................................ 224 11 51 — — —
Net income for the year ................................................................. — — — — — 2,763
Adjustment for the adoption of deferred tax accounting ................ — — — — — 6,004
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation...................................... — — — — — 5
Increase due to inclusion in equity method .................................... — — — — — 52
Increase due to the merger of a consolidated subsidiary with 
a non-consolidated subsidiary..................................................... — — — — — 4

Adjustment for deferred income tax liabilities on 
previously recognized asset revaluation gains.............................. — — — — — (8,760)

Decrease due to inclusion in consolidation .................................... — — — — — (1,455)
Decrease due to inclusion in equity method .................................. — — — — — (45)
Decrease due to the merger of consolidated subsidiaries .............. — — — — — (546)
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses .................................... — — — — — (28)
Increase due to revaluation of land (Note 13) ................................. — — — 60,718 — —
Increase due to valuation of securities by an affiliate ...................... — — — — 18 —

Balance at December 31, 2000 ..................................................... 1,038,260 ¥105,459 ¥46,695 ¥60,718 ¥18 ¥(68,214)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 4)

Balance at December 31, 1999 ..................................................... 1,038,036 $916,941 $405,595 $          — $   — $(575,723)

Share exchange ............................................................................ 224 97 444 — — —
Net income for the year ................................................................. — — — — — 24,025
Adjustment for the adoption of deferred tax accounting ................ — — — 52,210
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation...................................... — — — — — 43
Increase due to inclusion in equity method .................................... — — — — — 450
Increase due to the merger of a consolidated subsidiary with 
a non-consolidated subsidiary..................................................... — — — — — 35

Adjustment for deferred income tax liabilities on 
previously recognized asset revaluation gains.............................. — — — — — (76,174)

Decrease due to inclusion in consolidation .................................... — — — — — (12,651)
Decrease due to inclusion in equity method .................................. — — — — — (389)
Decrease due to the merger of consolidated subsidiaries .............. — — — — — (4,749)
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses .................................... — — — — — (245)
Increase due to revaluation of land (Note 13) ................................. — — — 527,982 — —
Increase due to valuation of securities by an affiliate ...................... — — — — 161 —

Balance at December 31, 2000 ..................................................... 1,038,260 $917,038 $406,039 $527,982 $161 $(593,169)

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Note 1) N
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

2000 2000

Cash flows from operating activities
Income (loss) before income taxes ........................................................................................................................ ¥    (279) $   (2,425)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization ........................................................................................................................... 40,752 354,369
Amortization of excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired...................................................................... 1,958 17,025
Interest and dividend income............................................................................................................................. (1,905) (16,562)
Interest expense................................................................................................................................................ 13,932 121,145
Equity in earnings of the non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ................................................................. (1,898) (16,504)
Gain on sale and write-down of marketable securities, net ................................................................................ (963) (8,376)
Loss on sale and write-down of investment securities, net ................................................................................ 1,086 9,441
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net .................................................................................... 6,420 55,828
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, net ........................................................................................... (6,065) (52,743)

Decrease in trade receivables................................................................................................................................ 17,084 148,557
Increase in inventories ........................................................................................................................................... (4,777) (41,542)
Decrease in trade payables ................................................................................................................................... (75) (652)
Other..................................................................................................................................................................... (6,340) (55,129)

Subtotal ............................................................................................................................................................ 58,930 512,432
Interest and dividend received............................................................................................................................... 2,637 22,928
Interest paid .......................................................................................................................................................... (14,172) (123,233)
Income taxes paid................................................................................................................................................. (3,951) (34,358)

Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................................................................. 43,443 377,769

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchases of marketable securities .................................................................................................. (11) (99)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities........................................................................................................ 1,748 15,203
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment.................................................................................... (31,806) (276,578)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment.......................................................................................... 6,439 55,990
Payments for purchases of investment securities .................................................................................................. (6,159) (53,558)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities ........................................................................................................ 5,165 44,911
Decrease in short-term loans, net.......................................................................................................................... 207 1,802
Payments for long-term loans................................................................................................................................ (593) (5,161)
Proceeds from collection of long-term loans.......................................................................................................... 2,932 25,498
Other..................................................................................................................................................................... 1,327 11,543

Net cash used in investing activities....................................................................................................... (20,751) (180,447)

Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in short-term debt, net........................................................................................................................... (58,454) (508,294)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt............................................................................................................ 31,832 276,804
Repayments of long-term debt.............................................................................................................................. (23,187) (201,627)
Payments of dividends to minority shareholders .................................................................................................... (467) (4,063)
Other..................................................................................................................................................................... (1,028) (8,942)

Net cash used in financing activities ..................................................................................................... (51,304) (446,123)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...................................................................... (1,213) (10,548)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................................................. (29,825) (259,348)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year.......................................................................................... 52,061 452,701
Effect of adjustment of newly consolidated subsidiaries on cash 
and cash equivalents at beginning of the year.................................................................................................. 10,831 94,187

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year .................................................................................................... ¥33,067 $287,540

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the year ended December 31, 2000
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NNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF REPORTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared in accordance with accounting principles and practices general-
ly accepted in Japan and from the consolidated financial statements
filed with the Director of Kanto Local Finance Bureau as required by
the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.

Certain items have been reclassified for the convenience of readers
who are not familiar with Japanese financial reporting practices.

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2000, the new Japanese
accounting standards for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements were adopted and the consolidated statement of cash
flows became a part of the required financial statements under the
Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.

The accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2000 was prepared in accordance with
the standards for the preparation of statements of cash flows that
were newly issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council
of Japan and its form was recommended by the Japanese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
December 31,1999 is not included because it is not practicable to
amend it in accordance with the new standards.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Com-
pany and its 58 significant subsidiaries (collectively, “the Companies”)
for the year ended December 31, 2000 and 50 significant subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 1999.

For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, all significant
intercompany transactions, account balances and unrealized profits
among the Companies are entirely eliminated and the portions attrib-
utable to minority interests are credited or charged to income.

Accounts of subsidiaries whose business year-ends differ by more
than three months from December 31 have been included using
appropriate interim financial information.

The excess of cost over equity in net assets is amortized on a
straight-line basis within a period of twenty years.

(b) Investments in Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates
The Company applies the equity method of accounting for investments
in five non-consolidated subsidiaries and 26 affiliates for the year
ended December 31, 2000 and investments in three non-consolidated
subsidiaries and 31 affiliates for the year ended December 31, 1999.

All underlying intercompany profits obtained from transactions
among the Companies and non-consolidated subsidiaries and affili-
ates to which the equity method is applied are eliminated in the con-
solidated financial statements.

The unamortized balance of the difference between the cost of
investments and the underlying net equity of investments acquired
amounted to ¥16 million (US$139 thousand) (credit) at December 31,
2000, and amortization charged to income for the year ended
December 31, 2000, totaled ¥113 million (US$983 thousand).

(c) Translation of Foreign-Currency Accounts
Foreign-currency-denominated receivables and payables and similarly
denominated investments in securities have been translated into
Japanese yen at historical exchange rates or at the applicable
exchange rates under forward exchange contracts.

Unrealized gains and losses arising from forward exchange con-
tracts are principally reflected in current operations for the period.
However, unrealized gains and losses arising from long-term forward
exchange contracts related to foreign-currency denominated indebt-
edness are allocated by month to the respective periods from the
booking dates to the settlement dates.

The monetary amounts stated in the financial statements of a certain
consolidated subsidiary of foreign nationality are translated into Japanese
yen at the year-end rate for assets and liabilities, at historical rates for
other balance sheet accounts exclusive of net income and at the aver-
age annual rate for revenue and expense accounts and net income.
The resulting translation adjustments are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as “Foreign currency translation adjustments.”

Certain consolidated subsidiaries have applied the revised stan-
dards for accounting for foreign-currency-denominated transactions
issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council.

(d) Income Taxes
In the past, intertemporal allocation of corporate tax was made
pertaining to income before income tax, after elimination of unrealized
profits/losses and adjustment of allowance for doubtful accounts.
From this consolidated business year, allocation is being made, in prin-
ciple, regarding taxes pertaining to all temporary differences (difference
between the assets/liabilities on the consolidated financial statements
and the assets/liabilities in the calculation of taxable income).

(e) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
To provide mainly for losses from irrecoverable money claims, the
allowance is provided according to the limits stipulated in the
Corporation Tax Law (provision rate based on track records) as well
as to the probability of recovery of specific claims. Certain sub-
sidiaries provide for the allowance according to the amounts equiva-
lent to the limits stipulated in the Corporation Tax Law (the greater of
the legal provision rate or the actual provision rate) as well as to the
probability of recovery of specific claims. To provide for losses from
bad debts, certain subsidiaries provide for the allowance according
to the actual rate of non-recovery for ordinary claims and in view of
the probability of recovery for specific doubtful receivables.

(f) Marketable and Other Securities
Marketable securities and investment securities are stated principally
at cost as determined by the moving-average method.

At certain consolidated subsidiaries, securities to be owned until due
date are stated at cost as determined by the amortization cost method.
Other securities having current prices are stated at cost as determined
mainly by the moving-average method and those without current
prices, by either the moving-average method or at acquisition cost.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are stated mainly at cost as determined by the gross-
average method. Part of the assets owned by certain subsidiaries is
stated at cost as determined by the specific-cost method or by the
final purchasing price method.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of prop-
erty, plant and equipment is computed principally by the straight-line
method with the exception that the declining-balance method is applied
to certain factories of the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries. 

(i) Leases
Finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the own-
ership of the leased assets to the lessees are principally accounted for
by the method that is applicable to ordinary operating leases.
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NNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING CHANGES
(a) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
In the past, certain consolidated subsidiaries provided for an allowance based on the legal provision rate stipulated in the Corporation Tax Law. To
make more appropriate provisions, they started using the greater of the legal provision rate or the rate based on track records as well as taking into
account the probability of recovery of specific claims. This change had no effect on consolidated financial statements of this year.

(b) Employees’ Severance Indemnities
In the past, certain consolidated subsidiaries provided for employees’ severance indemnities at 40% of amount that would be required to be paid
if all eligible employees voluntarily severed their employment at the balance sheet date less the portion covered by the qualified retirement pension
premiums contract. From this consolidated business year, they changed to a system of providing for the allowance at 100% of the amount that
would be required to be paid if all eligible employees severed their employment at the balance sheet date. As a result of this change, loss before
income taxes for this year increased by ¥608 million (US$5,287 thousand).

4. TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLARS
The Companies’ accounting records are maintained in yen. The U.S. dollar amounts appearing in the accompanying financial statements and
notes thereto represent the arithmetical results of translating yen to U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥115 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange
at December 31, 2000. The inclusion of such U.S. dollar amounts is solely for the convenience of readers; it does not carry with it any implication
that yen amounts have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars at that rate.

5. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
At December 31, 2000, marketable securities consisted of the following:
December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Marketable equity securities........................................................................................................................................... ¥13,734 $119,426
Bonds and other............................................................................................................................................................ 98 852

...................................................................................................................................................................................... 13,832 120,278

Market value of marketable securities ............................................................................................................................ ¥18,468 $160,591

6. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, 2000 and 1999, short-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:
December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2000 1999 2000

Bank loans, interest 0.613%–15.25%........................................................................................................ ¥228,223 ¥264,806 $1,984,550
Commercial paper..................................................................................................................................... 2,500 9,000 21,739

Total.......................................................................................................................................................... ¥230,723 ¥273,806 $2,006,289

( j) Employees’ Severance Indemnities and Pension Plans
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have non-
contributory benefit pension plans for all employees. Certain consoli-
dated subsidiaries have introduced a qualified retirement pension plan
for part of the severance pay. Meanwhile, certain consolidated com-
panies provide for employees’ severance indemnities at 40% of the
amount that would be required to be paid if all eligible employees vol-
untarily severed their employment at the balance sheet date. Certain
consolidated subsidiaries provide for employees’ severance indemni-
ties at 100% of the amount that would be required to be paid if all eli-
gible employees voluntarily severed their employment at the balance
sheet date less the portion covered by the qualified retirement pension
contract. Further, certain consolidated companies provide for retire-

ment benefits for directors and statutory auditors in an amount deter-
mined by those companies’ internal guidelines.

To provide for the payment of employees’ severance benefits, cer-
tain consolidated subsidiaries have appropriated expenses in 15-year
installments pertaining to the difference of ¥26,535 million (US$230,739
thousand) at the time of the change in accounting standards. The
figure is based on the amount of severance benefit obligations at the
balance sheet date and the estimated amount of the pension fund.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits available for
withdrawal on demand and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less and minor risk for value fluctuation.
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At December 31, 2000 and 1999, long-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:
December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2000 1999 2000

2.19% bonds due 2001 ............................................................................................................................ ¥003,000 ¥003,000 $0,026,087
2.27% bonds due 2002 ............................................................................................................................ 5,000 5,000 43,478
2.3% bonds due 2005 .............................................................................................................................. 3,500 3,500 30,435
1.9% bonds due 2007 .............................................................................................................................. 8,500 8,500 73,913
1.7% convertible bonds due 2002, convertible currently at ¥1,058............................................................ 10,000 10,000 86,957
1.7% convertible bonds due 2005, convertible currently at ¥1,058............................................................ 28,955 29,126 251,783
0.7486%–8.0% loans, principally from banks and insurance companies, due 2000 to 2020 ..................... 354,877 339,978 3,085,884

................................................................................................................................................................ 413,832 399,104 3,598,536
Less: Current portion................................................................................................................................. (63,756) (21,753) (554,397)

................................................................................................................................................................. ¥350,076 ¥377,351 $3,044,139

At December 31, 2000, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term debt and long-term debt:
December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Marketable securities and investment securities ........................................................................................................... ¥000,634 $0,005,513
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation .................................................................................... 302,643 2,631,678
Other............................................................................................................................................................................ 60 522

.................................................................................................................................................................................... ¥303,337 $2,637,713

The aggregate annual maturities of the non-current portion of long-term debt are as follows:
Years ending December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 ............................................................................................................................................................................ ¥097,946 $0,851,704
2003 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 140,827 1,224,583
2004 and thereafter...................................................................................................................................................... 111,303 967,852

.................................................................................................................................................................................... ¥350,076 $3,044,139

7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2000, the Companies were contingently liable for outstanding trade notes discounted by banks in the ordinary course of business
in an aggregate amount of ¥2,348 million (US$20,417 thousand) and for the endorsement of trade notes receivable in the ordinary course of busi-
ness in an aggregate amount of ¥68 million (US$591 thousand). They were also guarantors for the borrowing below, principally incurred by non-
consolidated subsidiaries, affiliates and others.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Guarantee ..................................................................................................................................................................... ¥25,942 $225,583
Stand-by guarantee....................................................................................................................................................... 295 2,565
Other construed guarantee............................................................................................................................................ 200 1,739

The figure ¥25,942 million includes ¥15,615 million (US$135,783 thousand) of guarantees provided by consolidated subsidiaries.

8. EFFECT OF YEAR-END DATES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The two year-end dates of 2000, namely, December 30 and 31, 2000, were bank holidays. Although notes receivable and payable on these dates
were accordingly settled on January 4, 2001, the Companies accounted for those notes in their financial statements as if they had been settled
on these dates.
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Notes outstanding at December 31, 2000 and 1999, dealt with in the above-mentioned manner were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2000 1999 2000

Notes receivable ................................................................................................................................................. ¥10,519 ¥5,327 $91,470
Notes payable..................................................................................................................................................... 6,674 882 58,035
Trade notes discounted by banks ....................................................................................................................... 609 420 5,296
The endorsement of trade notes receivable......................................................................................................... 24 62 209

9. INFORMATION FOR CERTAIN LEASES
At December 31, 2000, assets leased under non-capitalized financial leases were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Machinery and equipment.............................................................................................................................................. ¥14,877 $129,365
Other ............................................................................................................................................................................. 2,359 20,513
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization.......................................................................................................... 8,912 77,496

Total............................................................................................................................................................................... ¥08,324 $072,383

Lease payments under finance leases, which are accounted for in the same manner as operating leases for the year ended December 31, 2000,
were ¥3,103 million (US$26,983 thousand). Future lease payments under such finance leases as of December 31, 2000, inclusive of interest, were
¥8,324 million (US$72,383 thousand), including ¥2,284 million (US$19,861 thousand) due within one year.

10. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries conclude foreign currency forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and futures con-
tracts for commodities. 

The forward exchange contracts, executed with creditworthy financial institutions, are used to hedge the risk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates associated with assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. 

The interest rate swaps, executed with creditworthy financial institutions, are used to hedge the risk of changes in interest rates and to curtail
financial expenses. 

The futures contracts, executed with creditworthy trading companies, are used to hedge the risk of changes in commodity prices. 
At December 31, 2000, the derivative financial instruments of the Companies were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Contract Valuation Valuation
Amount Fair Value Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)

December 31
Related to currencies

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
U.S. dollars .......................................................................................................................... ¥005,485 ¥05,632 ¥  (146) $0(1,270)
German marks ..................................................................................................................... 3 4 0 0

To buy foreign currencies
U.S. dollars .......................................................................................................................... 11,741 12,834 1,093 9,504
Euro..................................................................................................................................... 119 136 17 148
Japanese yen ...................................................................................................................... 183 156 (26) (226)

Related to interest rates
Interest rate swaps:

Paying fixed rates and receiving floating rates ...................................................................... 147,431 (3,722) (3,722) (32,365)
Paying floating rates and receiving fixed rates ...................................................................... 4,000 43 43 374

Related to commodities
Futures contracts:

To sell aluminum.................................................................................................................. 9,581 9,762 (180) (1,565)
To buy aluminum ................................................................................................................. 13,134 13,271 136 1,183

NNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. INCOME TAXES
At December 31, 2000, significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards ............................................................................................................................................... ¥12,155 $105,696
Write-down of marketable and investment securities.................................................................................................. 3,168 27,548
Unrealized earnings from the sale of fixed assets........................................................................................................ 1,722 14,974
Non-deductible expenses:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ............................................................................................................................ 1,154 10,035
Bonus payment reserve ......................................................................................................................................... 1,043 9,070
Employees’ severance indemnities......................................................................................................................... 958 8,330
Depreciation........................................................................................................................................................... 465 4,043

Foreign tax credit ....................................................................................................................................................... 392 3,409
Write-down of inventories........................................................................................................................................... 271 2,357
Other ......................................................................................................................................................................... 2,185 19,000

Subtotal of deferred tax assets....................................................................................................................................... 23,516 204,487
Valuation allowance.................................................................................................................................................... (4,104) (35,687)

Total deferred tax assets ................................................................................................................................................ ¥19,412 $168,800

Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax deductible reserve ............................................................................................................................................... ¥00,(569) $00(4,948)
Special depreciation reserve....................................................................................................................................... (1,579) (13,730)
Amount of revaluation from the book value................................................................................................................. (10,493) (91,243)
Other ......................................................................................................................................................................... (938) (8,157)

Total deferred tax liabilities ......................................................................................................................................... ¥(13,581) $(118,096)

Net deferred tax assets .................................................................................................................................................. ¥0(5,831 $0(50,704

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 are summarized by industry segment as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2000 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................ ¥232,294 ¥078,782 ¥094,393 ¥057,778 ¥283,752 ¥        — ¥0,747,000
Inter-segment ........................................................ 1,881 889 265 455 29,084 (32,574) —

Total .................................................................. 234,176 79,671 94,658 58,233 312,836 (32,574) 747,000
Operating costs ..................................................... 223,125 74,082 93,316 52,211 300,452 (25,781) 717,406

Operating income .................................................. ¥011,051 ¥005,589 ¥001,342 ¥006,023 ¥012,384 ¥  (6,793) ¥0,029,594

Assets ....................................................................... ¥256,714 ¥158,511 ¥113,500 ¥129,214 ¥425,919 ¥04,765 ¥1,088,623
Depreciation and amortization ................................... 7,840 5,473 5,935 3,339 18,448 (283) 40,752
Capital expenditures .................................................. 16,223 3,224 8,022 1,900 10,654 — 40,023
Note: From 2000, operating expenses that cannot be allocated to specific segments, mainly R&D expenses that do not belong to specific segments, have been included in common/head
office expenses. Figures for 1999 have been amended accordingly.



Year ended December 31, 1999 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................... ¥192,996 ¥063,902 ¥081,976 ¥061,192 ¥262,682 ¥        — ¥662,747
Inter-segment........................................................... 1,485 1,197 — 124 19,363 (22,169) —

Total..................................................................... 194,481 65,098 81,976 61,316 282,045 (22,169) 662,747
Operating costs........................................................ 184,356 59,377 80,446 55,795 274,029 (16,328) 637,675

Operating income..................................................... ¥010,125 ¥005,722 ¥001,530 ¥005,521 ¥008,016 ¥  (5,841) ¥025,073

Assets .......................................................................... ¥219,232 ¥121,480 ¥101,944 ¥106,552 ¥407,139 ¥05,347 ¥961,692
Depreciation and amortization ...................................... 8,846 5,310 8,252 3,504 16,561 119 42,592
Capital expenditures..................................................... 12,228 3,165 7,777 3,009 11,001 — 37,180

Year ended December 31, 2000 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ....................................... $2,019,951 $0,685,064 $820,810 $,0502,420 $2,467,405 $          — $6,495,651
Inter-segment ............................................... 16,361 7,727 2,304 3,957 252,904 (283,253) —

Total ......................................................... 2,036,312 692,791 823,114 506,376 2,720,310 (283,253) 6,495,651
Operating costs ............................................ 1,940,217 644,194 811,446 454,006 2,612,626 (224,179) 6,238,309

Operating income ......................................... $0,096,095 $0,048,598 $011,668 $0,052,370 $0,107,684 $  (59,073) $0,257,342

Assets .............................................................. $2,232,292 $1,378,358 $986,958 $1,123,597 $3,703,641 $   41,437 $9,466,284
Depreciation and amortization........................... 68,172 47,591 51,609 29,037 160,421 (2,461) 354,369
Capital expenditures ......................................... 141,070 28,035 69,757 16,522 92,643 — 348,026

The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 are summarized by geographic area as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2000 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥0,674,095 ¥72,905 ¥        — ¥0,747,000
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 27,628 4,195 (31,823) —

Total................................................................................................................. 701,723 77,100 (31,823) 747,000
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 669,272 73,152 (25,018) 717,406

Operating income................................................................................................. ¥0,032,451 ¥03,947 ¥ (6,804) ¥0,029,594

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥1,026,702 ¥49,889 ¥12,032 ¥1,088,623

Year ended December 31, 1999 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥579,397 ¥83,350 ¥        — ¥662,747
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 38,323 3,071 (41,394) —

Total................................................................................................................. 617,720 86,421 (41,394) 662,747
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 592,359 80,597 (35,282) 637,675

Operating income................................................................................................. ¥025,361 ¥05,823 ¥  (6,112) ¥025,073

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥904,523 ¥41,964 ¥15,205 ¥961,692
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Year ended December 31, 2000 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................ $5,861,695 $633,956 $         — $6,495,651
Inter-segment.................................................................................................... 240,243 36,475 (276,719) —

Total.............................................................................................................. 6,010,938 670,431 (276,719) 6,495,651
Operating costs................................................................................................. 5,819,755 636,105 (217,551) 6,238,309

Operating income.............................................................................................. $0,282,183 $034,326 $ (59,167) $0,257,342

Assets................................................................................................................... $8,927,844 $433,818 $104,622 $9,466,284

Overseas sales, which represent sales to customers outside of Japan, of the Companies for the year ended December 31, 2000 are summarized
by geographic area as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2000 Millions of yen

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales............................................................................................................................................ ¥68,990 ¥67,410 ¥136,400
Consolidated net sales................................................................................................................................ 747,000
Ratio of overseas sales to consolidated net sales........................................................................................ 9.2% 9.0% 18.3%

Year ended December 31, 2000 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales ......................................................................................................................................... $599,913 $586,174 $1,186,087

Overseas sales for the year ended December 31, 1999 totaled ¥151,994 million (US$1,321,687 thousand) and accounted for 22.9% of consoli-
dated net sales.

13. REVALUATION SURPLUS
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries revalued the land they own for business in accordance with the Law Concerning Revaluation of
Land. The difference between the revalued amount and the book value, after the deduction of applicable tax, is stated as revaluation surplus. The reval-
uation was conducted using methods stipulated in the ordinance for enforcement of the law, specifically, the method in Item 4, Article 2 (reasonable
adjustment of the appraised value relating to land price tax), and the method in Item 5, Article 2 (estimation by experts). Revaluation was performed on
December 31, 2000. The book value of the pertinent land increased from ¥80,220 million ($697,565 thousand) to ¥184,906 million ($1,607,878 thousand).

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation
It was approved at the Company’s stockholders’ meeting on January 12, 2001 to merge with Showa Aluminum Corporation on March 30, 2001,
for the purpose of consolidating aluminum operations and expanding those operations as the Group’s largest core business.

Merger with Nihon Polystyrene Co., Ltd.
It was decided at the Company’s board of directors meeting on February 9, 2001 to merge with Nihon Polystyrene Co., Ltd. effective March 29,
2001, for the purpose of consolidating the control of, and more effectively using, assets.

Merger with Showa Building K.K.
It was decided at the Company’s board of directors meeting on March 13, 2001 to merge with Showa Building K.K. effective June 13, 2001, for the
purpose of eliminating the latent loss pertaining to land.

Showa Denko K.K. 31
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RREPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS M
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

Showa Denko K.K. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and

1999, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockhold-

ers’ equity for each of the two years in the period ended December

31, 2000 and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year in

the period ended December 31, 2000, all expressed in Japanese yen.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these con-

solidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted

auditing standards in Japan. Those standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-

ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Showa Denko K.K. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and

1999, and the results of their operations for each of the two years in

the period ended December 31, 2000 and the result of their cash

flows in the year in the period ended December 31, 2000 in conformi-

ty with generally accepted accounting principles in Japan applied on a

consistent basis during the period, except for the new accounting pol-

icy and the change, with which we concur, in the following paragraph.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Showa Denko

K.K. and its subsidiaries adopted the new Japanese accounting stan-

dards for consolidation and cash flows and also in Note 3 (a) and (b)

to the financial statements, certain consolidated subsidiaries changed

its method of allowance for doubtful receivables and employees’ sev-

erance indemnities in 2000.

The Fuji Accounting Office

Certified Public Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Showa Denko K.K.

Tokyo, Japan

March 29, 2001
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MMAJOR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (As of December 31, 2000)

Name Equity Participation (%) Main Product or Business

Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd. *(T5193) 43.9 Plastic cloth, bags, sheeting, etc.
Hymold Co., Ltd. 100.0 Plastic products for electrical appliances
Hymold (Pte) Ltd. 97.5 Plastic products for electrical appliances
Hymold (Thailand) Ltd. 65.0 Plastic products for electrical appliances
Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd. 65.0 High- and low-density polyethylene
Japan Polypropylene Co., Ltd. 66.7 Polypropylene
Kokusai Eisei Co., Ltd. 100.0 Insecticides, insect and rodent control
PT. Hymold Indonesia 80.0 Plastic products for electrical appliances
PT. Showa Aluminum Indonesia 90.0 Evaporators for refrigerators
PT. Showa Esterindo Indonesia 67.0 Ethyl acetate
SDS Biotech K.K. 100.0 Agrochemicals
Shoko Co., Ltd. *(T8090) 42.6 General trading
Shotic America Corporation 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Shotic Corporation 100.0 Aluminum forged products and cast aluminum alloy rods
Shotic (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K. 100.0 Aluminum alloy
Showa Aluminum Can Corporation 75.0 Beer and soft drink cans
Showa Aluminum Corporation* (T5734) (Note 1) 50.1 Aluminum rolled products, high-purity foils, fabricated products (beverage cans, heat exchangers)
Showa Aluminum Corporation of America 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles, photosensitive drums for laser beam printers
Showa Aluminum Czech S.R.O. 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles, photosensitive drums for laser beam printers
Showa Aluminum Europe GmbH 100.0 Sales of heat exchangers
Showa Aluminum (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 100.0 Aluminum substrates for hard disks
Showa Aluminum Manufacturing 
Philippines Corporation 100.0 Evaporators for refrigerators

Showa Aluminum Powder K.K. 100.0 Aluminum paste
Showa Aluminum (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 92.5 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles, photosensitive drums for laser beam printers
Showa Aluminum Viewtech Co., Ltd. 92.8 Flagstaffs, lightning rods, etc.
Showa Building K.K. (Note 2) 100.0 Real estate rent
Showa Denko Asia (Pte.) Ltd. 100.0 Investment in Southeast Asian subsidiaries
Showa Denko Carbon, Inc. 100.0 Graphite electrodes
Showa Denko HD 100.0 Hard disks
Showa Denko Kenso Co., Ltd. 100.0 Grinding and polishing tools
Showa Denko Kenzai K.K. 100.0 Plaster materials, fire-proofing pipe, wall siding, etc.
Showa Denko Plastic Products Co., Ltd. 100.0 Packaging materials, distribution-related equipment, OA equipment housing, etc.
Showa Distribution K.K. 96.4 Distribution and warehousing
Showa Engineering Co., Ltd. 90.4 Engineering, construction, maintenance
Showa Financing K.K. 87.6 Provision of finance to subsidiaries and affiliates
Showa Homes K.K. 65.0 Company housing rental
Showa Titanium Co., Ltd. 100.0 Ceramics for electronics applications
Shunan Denko K.K. 80.0 High-carbon ferrochrome
Taiwan Chao Yang Chemical Co., Ltd. 74.3 Plastic products for electrical appliances
Tsurusaki Kyodo Doryoku K.K. 56.5 Electric power and steam generation, supply of water, treatment of wastewater

SUBSIDIARIES

Name Equity Participation (%) Main Product or Business

Middelburg Technochrome (Pty.) Ltd. 20.7 Low-carbon ferrochrome
Montell SDK Sunrise Ltd. (Note 3) 50.0 Polypropylene and advanced polypropylene-based materials
Showa Cabot K.K. 50.0 Carbon black
Showa Cabot Supermetals K.K. 50.0 Tantalum and rare metals
Showa DDE Manufacturing K.K. 50.0 Synthetic rubber
Showa High Polymer Co., Ltd.* (T4214) 25.9 Unsaturated polyester, vinyl ester, etc.
Showa Tansan Co., Ltd.* (T4096) 20.6 Liquid oxygen, nitrogen, argon
SKY Aluminium Co., Ltd. 37.3 Sheets, plates
Tokyo Liquefied Oxygen Co., Ltd. 35.0 Liquefied oxygen, nitrogen, argon
Union Showa K.K. 50.0 Molecular sieves

AFFILIATES

*Tokyo Stock Exchange listed companies

Note 1: In March 2001, Showa Denko K.K. was merged with Showa Aluminum Corporation.
Note 2: Showa Denko K.K. will merge with Showa Building K.K. in June 2001.
Note 3: In January 2001, Montell SDK Sunrise Ltd. was renamed SunAllomer Ltd.

As of December 31, 2000, Showa Denko K.K. had 58 consolidated subsidiaries, including the above.
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DIRECTORS, CORPORATE OFFICERS, AND STATUTORY AUDITORS (As of March 30, 2001)

◆ PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mitsuo Ohashi

◆ EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
Iwao Kojima
Assistant to President; Executive Officer, 
Technology & Research Headquarters

◆ SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTORS
Koh Matsushita
Executive Officer, Petrochemicals Sector

Shinpei Kanto
Executive Officer, Aluminum Materials Sector

◆ MANAGING DIRECTORS
Nobuyoshi Takamatsu
Executive Officer, Inorganic Materials Sector 

Hiroshi Matsubara
Director in charge of Corporate Strategy Department

Tadaaki Ichinomiya
Executive Officer, Chemicals Sector

Masaru Yamasaki
Director in charge of Corporate Innovation Office

Akira Furusawa
Executive Officer, Aluminum Fabricated Products Sector

Minoru Kiyono
Executive Officer, Electronics Sector

◆ DIRECTORS
Satoshi Fujiguchi
Chief Manager, Business Support Center; 
Director in charge of Audit Office 

Osamu Takahashi
General Manager, Extrusion Division, Aluminum Materials Sector

Norikuni Imoto
Chief Manager, Corporate Relations Center

Naoshi Ono
Executive Officer, Production Technology Headquarters

Tatsuo Sato
Chief Manager, Corporate Strategy Department

Note: All directors listed above concurrently serve as corporate 
officers corresponding to their respective positions.

DIRECTORS
◆ STANDING STATUTORY AUDITORS

Naoaki Yokobori

Keiichi Sugiyama

◆ AUDITORS
Takashi Kobayashi

Noboru Sakaguchi

Ken-ichiro Kikuchi

Masayoshi Yoneyama
General Manager, Heat Exchanger Division, 
Aluminum Fabricated Products Sector

Yasumasa Sasaki
General Manager, HD Division, Electronics Sector

Tadahiro Hashimoto
General Manager, Rare Earth Division, Electronics Sector; 
Chief Manager, Marketing Department, Rare Earth Division

Kazuo Akiyoshi
Oita Complex Representative; Plant Manager, Oita Plant

Hiroshi Ito
Chief Manager, Finance & Accounting Group, Business Support Center

Yasushi Washio
General Manager, Foil Division, Aluminum Materials Sector

Toyoharu Fujii
General Manager, Ceramics Division, Inorganic Materials Sector

Takeshi Mimura
Chief Manager, Planning Department, Petrochemicals Sector

Akira Tsuchida
Chief Manager, Planning Department, 
Aluminum Fabricated Products Sector

Shinzou Miyamoto
General Manager, Rolled Products Division, Aluminum Materials Sector 

Takayuki Kato
General Manager, Shotic Division, Aluminum Materials Sector

Hiromune Chuma
General Manager, MD Division, Electronics Sector

Kunio Kashiwada
General Manager, Gases & Chemicals Division, Chemicals Sector

Tatsuo Otsuka
General Manager, OA Equipment Components Division, 
Aluminum Fabricated Products Sector

CORPORATE OFFICERS

STATUTORY AUDITORS
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CORPORATE DATA

Regular General Meeting
The regular general meeting of stockholders was held on
March 29, 2001.

Number of Shares Outstanding
1,038,259,982 at December 31, 2000
(Before the merger with Showa Aluminum Corp.)

Number of Stockholders
95,011 at December 31, 2000

Classification of Stock
All stock issued by Showa Denko is common stock.

Stock Transfer Agent
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

1-6-2, Marunouchi
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005 
Japan

Stockholders by Sector (At December 31, 2000)

Number of shares 
held (%)

Individuals 327,901 31.58%

Japanese corporate entities 100,797 9.71%

Foreign corporate entities, etc. 57,965 5.57%

Financial firms 542,365 52.23%

Securities firms 9,374 0.90%

Governmental bodies 57 0.01%

Total 1,038,260 100.00%

Head Office
Showa Denko K.K.

13-9, Shiba Daimon 1-Chome
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8518 
Japan
Fax: 3-3436-2625

e-mail: sdk_prir@sdk.co.jp
URL: http://www.sdk.co.jp

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Showa Denko America, Inc.

Head Office
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Fl.
New York, NY 10017
U.S.A.
Phone: 212-370-0033
Fax: 212-370-4566

San Francisco Office
1900 S. Norfolk St., Suite 240
San Mateo, CA 94403
U.S.A.
Phone: 650-345-1338
Fax: 650-345-5403

Showa Denko (Europe) GmbH
Uhlandstr. 9, 40237 Düsseldorf 
Germany
Phone: 211-684035
Fax: 211-6798665

Showa Denko Singapore (Pte.) Ltd.
260 Orchard Road, #14-02 The Heeren
Singapore 238855
Phone: 732-7111
Fax: 733-6803

COMMERCIAL SUBSIDIARIES ABROAD

This annual report is printed on recycled paper and nonwood paper.
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